
MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 

 
 

SACRE MEETING 
 

3.45PM THURSDAY, 10TH FEBRUARY, 2011 
 

CONFERENCE ROOM 2 
 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. Apologies   

2. Minutes of Previous Meetings   

3. Matters Arising   

4. Religious Studies Examination Results 2010   

 To be tabled at meeting  
 

 

5. SACRE Monitoring of Inspection Reports   

 Future considerations  
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

6. WASACRE   

 • Feedback from WASACRE meeting on 26th 
November 2010 at Caerphilly 

 

• Representation at Spring Term meeting in 
the Vale of Glamorgan (March 2nd 2011) 

 

(Pages 7 - 10) 



• Nominations to the WASACRE Executive  
 

7. Teacher Assessment Levels in Religious 
Education 2010  

 

 To be tabled at meeting  
 

 

8. Celebrating RE - March 2011   

9. SACRE Membership   

10. Correspondence   

11. Any other business as deemed urgent by the 
Chairman  

 

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors Richard Thomas (Chair)  
 Julie Symes (Vice Chair) 
 Councillor Robert Griffin, Councillor Gareth Jones, 

Heledd Barnett, Janine Brill, Sue Blackmore, 
Debra Evans, Father Matthew Gibbon, Lynne Lambe, 
Ann Star and Carys Pritchard 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203 

 
Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203 

 
 
 



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS  
   EDUCATION 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 10th 2011 
 
SUBJECT MONITORING OF RE AND COLLECTIVE WORSHIP IN 

SCHOOLS 
  
PURPOSE:             TO DISCUSS SACRE’S MONITORING ROLE  
 
SACRE has a role in monitoring collective worship and standards in religious 
education. Previously this was done by examining Estyn inspection reports. 
However, with the absence of subject reports under the new Framework there 
will be less evidence from Estyn reports to monitor standards in RE.  
 
How can we monitor standards in RE in schools? 

• As schools become more self- evaluative and adept at writing self-
evaluation reports and as internal structures and systems for 
monitoring become more systematic and robust then more constructive 
critical analysis by schools may now be in place. SACRE could 
consider the possibility of monitoring through the school self evaluation 
report during the inspection cycle. (i.e. that would mean that a school 
would provide the LA with a self evaluation once every six years. This 
could be flexible enough to be pre or post inspection). An overview of 
the self evaluation findings could be presented to SACRE. 

 

• The National Advisory Panel for RE (NAPfRE) has met to discuss this 
issue with the intention to have more commonality in monitoring 
procedures by the LAs of Wales. They have drawn up a pro forma for 
SACREs to discuss.  

 

• That SACRE support WASACRE in taking up this issue of the 
monitoring role of SACRE in their annual meeting with the Minister for 
Education (March 2011) and await any outcomes from that meeting.  

 
How can we monitor collective worship in schools? 

• There will still be sections of the Estyn inspection reports that will give 
us information about non fulfilment of statutory requirements and also 
the provision and quality of spiritual, moral, social and cultural 
development. We can continue to use this information to monitor 
aspects of collective worship.  

• SACRE could consider the possibility of monitoring collective worship 
through the school self evaluation report during the inspection cycle. 

• Continue to capitalise on the opportunities offered by schools for 
members to attend acts of collective worship so that they have first 
hand experience of collective worship in schools.  

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Recommendations/Action to be taken 

• To consider the arrangements to be made by SACRE to monitor 
standards and provision in RE. 

• To consider the arrangements to be made by SACRE to monitor 
provision and quality of collective worship. 

• SACRE to consider the pro- forma as a useful tool to monitor standards 
in RE. 

• To ascertain the response of head teachers to the process of 
monitoring RE and collective worship, including consideration of the 
manageability of using the suggested pro-forma, and feedback on any 
suggestions for improvement. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



Monitoring of Religious Education and Collective Worship 
(Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010) 
  
Rationale 
Religious Education in locally controlled by a Standing Advisory Council on 
Religious Education (SACRE).  It is made up of three committees:  
representatives of the principal religous traditions of the area, teacher 
representatives and local authority representatives.  SACRE’s main function 
is, “ to advise the authority  upon such matters connected with religious 
worship in county schools and the religious education to be given in 
accordance with an agreed syllabus as the authority may refer to the council 
or as the council may see fit.” (Education Reform Act 1988 s.11(1)(a)  
 
XXXXX SACRE believes that this advice should be based on current 
information and hopes that the following guidelines will enable headteachers 
to support SACRE in its duties. 
 
In the past XXXX SACRE has monitored religious education and collective 
worship by: 

• reviewing ESTYN inspection reports; 

• analysing the assessment and examination results within the 
secondary schools of the Local Authority; 

• receiving regular reports from the representatives of the local school 
advisory service; 

• inviting teachers and headteachers to share examples of good practice 
with SACRE members. 

 
The new ESTYN Inspection Framework will no longer make specific 
references to Religious Education and collective worship.  XXXXX SACRE 
would therefore like to take advantage of the procedures and practices that 
are currently used by headteacher and teachers as they prepare for the new 
Inspection Framework   It was resolved at the XXXXX SACRE meeting on 
date that it would fulfil its statutory responsibilities by inviting schools to share 
their self evaluation of Religious Education, collective worship and pupils’ 
spiritual and moral development with SACRE members. 
 
Primary and secondary schools are kindly asked to submit a summary of the 
school’s self evaluation to the clerk of XXXXX SACRE during the year when 
they are inspected by ESTYN.   

Contact details: 
Name (SACRE Clerk): 
Address: 

 
Since 2008 the SACREs of Wales have adopted or adapted the National 
Exemplar Framework for Religious Education (DCELLS 2008) as their locally 
agreed syllabus.   Members of the National Advisory Panel for RE have 
welcomed this consistency across Wales since it has allowed them to work 
together to prepare generic guidelines for schools and SACREs.  Many 
SACREs in Wales have adopted a monitoring procedure/process similar to 
the one noted in this document. 

Page 3



Name of School:  

Religious Education 

Key Question 1: How good are outcomes in Religious Education? 

• Self-evaluation is based on lesson observations, evaluation of pupils’ 
work and interviews with pupils.   

• Secondary schools should refer to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious 
Studies and Religious Education) and include an evaluation of teacher 
assessments and/or examination results. 

References: ESTYN Inspection Framework Section 1 and the Locally Agreed 
Syllabus for Religious Education 

Standards in Religious Education – progress in learning  
 
  

Areas for Development 
 
 
 

Excellent  Good  Adequate  Unsatisfactory  

 

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Religious Education? 

• A self evaluation should consider the following indicators: the time 
allocated to the subject, the subject knowledge, expertise and 
professional development of the teaching staff, the appropriateness of 
the programme of study and the range of learning resources used. 

• An evaluation of lesson observations and pupils’ work will allow 
schools to make a judgement on the quality of the teaching of Religious 
Education, and the extent to which pupils are motivated and challenged 
to achieve highly. 

• In primary schools references should be made to the provision of 
‘People, Beliefs and Questions’ for Foundation Phase learners as well 
as Religious Education at KS2. 

• In secondary schools reference should be made to KS3, KS4 and KS5 
(Religious Studies and Religious Education). 

References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.1 and 2.2 and the Locally 
Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education 

The teaching: planning and range of strategies 
 
 
 

Areas for Development 
 
 
 
 

Excellent  Good  Adequate  Unsatisfactory  

 
 
Signed:                           (Headteacher) 
Date:     

Page 4



Name of School: 

Collective Worship 

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Collective Worship? 

Does Collective Worship meet the 
statutory requirements? 

Yes No 

References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.3.1, Supplementary Guidance 
on inspecting collective worship in non-denominational schools’ (September 
2010), ‘Religious Education and Collective Worship’ (Welsh Office Circular 
10/94) 

Good features in relation to the quality of Collective Worship 
 
 
 
 

Areas for Development in relation to the quality of Collective Worship 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Excellent  Good  Adequate  Unsatisfactory  

 
Signed:                           (Headteacher) 
Date:     
 
 

Page 5



 

Page 6



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR 

RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 10TH 2011 
 
SUBJECT: THE WASACRE MEETING HELD ON 

NOVEMBER 26TH, 2010 IN CAERPHILLY 
 
PURPOSE: TO INFORM THE SACRE OF THE 

DISCUSSIONS AND DELIBERATIONS OF 
WASACRE 

 
Summary 

 
The issues were as follows:  
 
1. Introduction and Welcome 
Members were welcomed to Caerphilly by Cllr James Fussell, the Worshipful 
Mayor of Caerphilly, and by Mrs Sandra Aspinall, the Director of Education 
and Leisure.  
 
2. NGfL Cymru 
A presentation was received from Ian Morgan, Deputy Director of the National 
Grid for Learning Cymru. Ian Morgan outlined the aims of NGfL in:  

• Creating interesting resources to engage pupils 

• Supporting continuing professional development  

• Supporting education policy and foci.  
The website was demonstrated to members as well as examples of RE 
projects currently in development.  
 
3. Project updates 
a) Celebrating RE 
It was explained that the launch of the RE festival in Wales will be held during 
the Spring Term meeting of WASACRE at Stanwell Comprehensive School in 
the Vale of Glamorgan. The launch will include an input from local primary 
and secondary schools, a panel of faith representatives, a demonstration by 
India Dance Wales, contribution by Roger Royle and a performance of the 
national song. The festival will be officially launched by the Archbishop of 
Wales, Barry Morgan.  SACREs are asked to request tickets from the 
WASACRE secretary by January 31st 2011.  
 
3b) WASACRE website 
The WASACRE website was demonstrated by Dr Tania Ap Sion. The aims of 
the website are to: 

• make the work of WASACRE more accessible to SACREs  

• publicise the work of WASACRE.  
The website includes the following sections: 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



• Welcome page – outlines the aims of WASACRE 

• About us – information about WASACRE and the Executive 
Committee 

• Projects and events – reference to WASACRE involvement in 
ongoing projects such as REsilience and Celebrating RE 

• Publications – provides downloadable copies of agreed syllabi, 
SACRE Annual Reports, presentations to SACRE and relevant WAG 
documents. A copy of the SACRE handbook ‘So you’re joining your 
local SACRE’ will also be available to download.   

The website will also provide the relevant papers for all WASACRE meetings 
as well as an archive of past papers.  
 
3c) - REsilience  
The aim of the project is to improve RE teachers’ skills in facilitating pupils’ 
critical thinking around controversial issues, particularly those that relate to 
religion, belief, ethnicity, negative stereotyping and religious extremism. The 
project also aims to improve RE teachers’ subject knowledge in the areas of 
community cohesion and violent extremism by focusing on a deeper 
understanding of the theological teachings on issues such as conflict, respect 
appreciation and understanding of different religions and beliefs. The project 
is being run by the RE Council (REC) and it is supported by DfE and 
DCELLS.  Five schools in Wales were part of the initial pilot (Summer 2010). 
SACREs were asked to encourage schools in Wales to register for the project 
by visiting the REsilience website: www.re-silience.org.  The target for 
REsilience in Wales is to have 40 schools involved in the project.  
 
4.  Face to Faith 
A presentation was received from Jo Malone, a Face to Faith Facilitator on 
the educational programme funded by the Tony Blair Faith Foundation.  Face 
to Faith is a school project that engages students of different faiths and none 
in inter and intra-faith dialogue through the use of video conferencing.  It is 
designed to encourage young people to recognise the similarities between 
faiths and to respect and deal with the differences between diverse and 
sometimes conflicting worldviews. The programme is aimed at 11-16 year 
olds.  Currently schools in the UK, US, Canada, India, Pakistan, Singapore, 
Indonesia, Lebanon, Palestinian Territories, Jordan, UAE, Egypt, Philippines, 
Israel and Australia are involved. One school from Wales is involved in the 
project and they are hoping to attract further interest from schools in Wales.   
 
5. Correspondence 
a) The Welsh Assembly Government’s Holocaust Memorial Day service will 
be held at Cardiff City Hall on the 27th January 2011.  
b) Holocaust Memorial Day Trust will be happy to promote any events that are 
being arranged by SACREs to commemorate HMD on its website.  
 
6. The Valleys Regional Equality Council (VALREC) 
A presentation was received by Darren Ralph on the work of the Valleys 
Regional Equality Council. It was explained that VALREC have a service level 
agreement with the counties of Bridgend, Caerphilly, RCT, Torfaen, Blaenau 
Gwent and also work closely with Parc Prison. Examples of the work 

Page 8



undertaken by VALREC were outlined e.g. its training programme on religion 
and belief and work on issues relating to community cohesion and the Prevent 
agenda (counter terrorism strategy), hate crime and forced marriages.  
 
7. Feedback from WASACRE Executive Committee 
a) The annual meeting with the Minister has been postponed from January 
until March 23rd 2011.  
b) The possibility of including RE and collective worship as part of future 
thematic reviews has been raised with Estyn. However, members were 
informed that the thematic reviews were currently on hold due to the current 
financial climate. It was agreed that further clarification will be sought at the 
meeting with the Minister in March 2011.  
 
8. Date of next meeting:  
 
March 2nd 2011: WASACRE meeting and launch of the Celebrating RE 
festival.  
Venue: Stanwell Comprehensive School, Vale of Glamorgan.  

Page 9



 

Page 10


	Agenda
	5 SACRE Monitoring of Inspection Reports
	6 WASACRE

